
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
April 4, 2016 

Executive Session 6:00 P.M. 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] Union Negotiations and [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
Consultation with Legal Counsel 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the minutes of March 21, 2016 
b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 223 
c) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 041 Lot 011 

Sub 000 Typ 006 
d) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 

Sub 000 Typ 276 
e) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 

Sub 000 Typ 200 
f) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 025 Lot 016 

Sub 000 Typ 058 
g) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 346 
h) Accept and expend 2016 Distracted Driving High Visibility Enforcement Grant  
i) Accept and expend 2016 High Visibility Enforcement Campaign Seat Belt Enforcement 

Grant:   
j) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to 

assist with the purchase of turnout gear for the Fire Department  
k) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant for a 

security mechanism for the 2nd floor of Town Hall 
l) Adoption of a “Resolution Recognizing National Service Recognition Day” (returning 

from March 21, 2016 meeting) 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 



2 
 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 Finance Committee 
 Master Plan Implementation Committee 
 Recycling and Sustainability Committee 
 Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

a) Project Tracking Report  
b) Budget meeting schedule 
c) Special Permit for U-Haul Moving and Storage 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
39. The Town Council will hear public comments on a renewal special amusement 

application, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
Columbus Club, Inc.     William Sulzberger, G. K. 
D/B/A: Knights of Columbus, Sekenger Council #1947 

 2 Columbus Drive 
HEARING/ACTION 

 
TABLED ITEM 
 
36. The Town Council will consider requesting that the Town Manager direct the Planning 

Department to require a special use permit review of the Miller Point revetment project, 
and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Walker)  

ACTION 
 
28. The Town Council will consider adopting a method to tally write-ins for local elections as 

required under 30-A M.R.S.A. §2501, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager/Town Clerk) 

ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
40. The Town Council will consider adopting the proposed Social Service Policy, and will 

take any appropriate action.  (Social Service Committee)   
ACTION 

 
41. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, and 

will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521)



3 
 

 
Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda 
April 4, 2016 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
Executive Session:  [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] Union Negotiations and [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] 
Consultation with Legal Counsel 
 

Motion to go into executive session to discuss Union Negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(D) and for a consultation with legal counsel per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the minutes of March 21, 2016:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

 
Items CA-b through CA- g deed back properties to the owners, who have paid owed taxes.  
Copies of the deeds are included in your packet. 

 
b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 223 
c) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 041 Lot 011 

Sub 000 Typ 006 
d) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 

Sub 000 Typ 276 
e) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 003 

Sub 000 Typ 200 
f) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 025 Lot 016 

Sub 000 Typ 058 
g) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 001 

Sub 000 Typ 346 
 

h) Accept and expend 2016 Distracted Driving High Visibility Enforcement Grant: This item 
allows the Police Department to spend this grant, which they are eligible for, even without 
first applying.  They will formally apply as a way to indicate their desire for the grant.  
This grant is for $5,000 with no town match except in-kind time.  Commander Hagan will 
be at the meeting to answer any questions.  A copy of the grant application is included in 
your packet. 
 

i) Accept and expend 2016 High Visibility Enforcement Campaign Seat Belt Enforcement 
Grant:  This item allows the Police Department to spend this grant, which they are eligible 
for, even without first applying.  They will formally apply as a way to indicate their desire 
for the grant.   This grant is for $2,800 with no town match except in-kind time.  
Commander Hagan will be at the meeting to answer any questions.  A copy of the grant 
application is included in your packet. 

  



4 
 

 
j) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to 

assist with the purchase of turnout gear for the Fire Department:  This item is to apply for 
a grant to assist with the purchase of two sets of firefighting turnout gear.   The amount of 
the grant is $3,592 with up to a $2,000 reimbursement through MMA.  The Fire 
Department has money in the budget, and, if awarded, this would provide a savings.  A 
copy of the Deputy Chief’s memo is included in your packet. 
 

k) Permission to apply for, and, if received, expend a MMA Safety Enhancement Grant to 
assist with the purchase of a security mechanism for the 2nd floor of Town Hall:  This item 
is to apply for a grant to assist with the purchase of this security mechanism, which will 
allow for the second floor to be locked after hours.  This system will greatly enhance 
security measures for employees working in the building in the evening by restricting 
access to the second floors as needed.  The quote is for $5,221, funds have been reserved, 
and if the Town receives the $2,000 from MMA, it will reduce the Town’s cost.  The 
benefits are outlined in a memo from Jessica Factor.  A copy of the memo is included in 
your packet. 
 

l) Adoption of a “Resolution Recognizing National Service Recognition Day” (returning 
from March 21, 2016 meeting):  This item, sponsored by Chair Brayman, recognizes 
municipalities’ use of national service and volunteerism to provide assistance to their 
communities.  The Resolution recognizes April 5, 2016, as a Day of Recognition for 
National Service.  The Council approved a similar resolution for recognition in 2014.  
Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge and the draft resolution are included in your 
packet. 

 
The Council always has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be considered 
separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

 
Chair Brayman will be pulling off item CA-l to read and vote on separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt CA-l “Resolution Recognizing National Service Recognition Day.” 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 Finance Committee 
 Master Plan Implementation Committee 
 Recycling and Sustainability Committee  
 Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission 

 

Councilors representing the Council on the above committees that have recently met will 
provide brief updates.  If there are any Committee updates beyond those listed, Councilors can 
also share them with the Council and public. 

 



5 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
A memo from Manager Eldridge outlining the Manager’s Report items is included in your packet. 
 
a) Project Tracking Report:  The Council will receive a monthly report on projects being 

tracked.  Manager Eldridge will discuss a possible quarterly workshop on these activities.  A 
copy of the project list is included in your packet. 

 
b) Budget meeting schedule:  Manager Eldridge will review the upcoming budget schedule, and 

the Council may make changes.  A copy of the schedule is included in your packet. 
 
c) Special Permit for U-Haul Moving and Storage:  This item is to inform the Council of a 

Special Permit that was approved by the Planning Board on March 22nd.  Under section 701.G 
of the Zoning Ordinance, the Town Council has 30 days from the Board approval of the 
Special Permit to exercise jurisdiction over the application.  If the Council decides not to 
exercise jurisdiction, the Planning Board’s decision will take effect after the 30-day approval 
date.  A memo from Anna Breinich explains the process in greater detail.  Copies of the 
memo and the Special Permit are included in your packet. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
39. This item is the required public hearing on a renewal special amusement application for 

the Knights of Columbus.  They are requesting live bands and D.J.s along with other 
functions, including comedy shows and variety shows in their banquet hall.  They have 
requested this come forward even with a pending sale of the building.  Copies of the 
public hearing notice and the application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve a renewal special amusement application for Knights of Columbus, 
located at 2 Columbus Drive. 

 
TABLED ITEM 
 
36. This item, tabled at your last meeting, is sponsored by Councilor Walker, who is asking 

the Council to vote to request the Town Manager direct the Planning Department to 
require a special use permit review of the Miller Point revetment project.  Councilor 
Walker has prepared background information.  Councilor Walker’s request has been 
forwarded to the Town Attorney for review.  A copy of Councilor Walker’s memo is 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  
Motion to request that Town Manager direct the planning department to require a special 
use permit review of the Miller Point revetment project. 

 
28. This item, tabled at your March 7th meeting, is for the Council to adopt a method to tally 

write-in votes for local elections as required under “An Act Regarding Write-in 
Candidates in Municipal and City Elections” (PL 2015, c. 160). Currently, all valid write-



6 
 

ins need to be tallied, but under this Act the Council may consider options to as to how to 
tally write-ins: 

 
(1) The Council can adopt according to certain procedures the two provisions in Title 21-

A that require write-in candidates to declare their candidacy to the municipal clerk at 
least 45 days before any election in order to be considered a viable write-in candidate, 
and subsequently be governed by those provisions unless and until the Council 
chooses to opt-out of that process;  

(2) If the Council does not wish to follow the Title 21-A write-in provisions, and as a way 
of limiting the requirement to count the ballots cast for all valid write in candidates, 
the Act requires the formal counting of those ballots only when (a) the printed ballot 
does not include a properly nominated candidate for the office, (b) the properly 
nominated candidate withdraws from the race before or on election day, or (c) the 
number of write-in votes exceeds the number of votes for a candidate printed on the 
ballot;   

(3)The municipality that has not chosen to adopt the Title 21-A provisions may formally 
count all ballots cast for write in candidates even if the counting is not mandated by 
law. 

 
The Town Clerk is requesting that the Council take action, with a recommendation to 
follow number 2, with the additional requirement to count write-ins who declare to the 
Clerk.  The Clerk believes the 21-A provision is too restrictive for Brunswick, but 
mandatory counting of write-ins can lead to additional work for election clerks at the end 
of the long day, with no change in election outcome.  Copies of a memo from the Town 
Clerk, Public Law Chapter 160, and an explanation of the law from the “Maine 
Townsman” are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion, as required under PL 2015, c. 160, to have the Town of Brunswick, for the 
purpose of tallying write-in votes for municipal election, follow Title 30-A only under the 
following circumstances: 

(1) The printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the office; 
or 
(2) A properly nominated candidate for the office listed on the ballot withdraws from 
the race before or on Election Day; or 
(3) The number of write-in votes for an office as determined by a machine count or 
initial hand count exceeds the number of votes in that count for a candidate printed on 
the ballot; or   
(4) A person has declared to the Town Clerk in writing no later than the Friday before 
the Election his/her intention to be a write-in candidate. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
40. This item, removed from the last meeting since Councilor Perreault was absent, is for the 

Council to consider adopting the draft social service policy.  At the October 5, 2015 
meeting, the Council received a draft social service agency funding policy from the Social 
Service Committee.  The draft was presented for the Council’s consideration and 
feedback, which has been incorporated into a revised draft for your review.  Given where 



7 
 

the budget process stands and the timeline contemplated in the draft policy, the Council 
should consider adopting the policy, but not implementing it until the 2017‐18 budget.  
Otherwise, the Council will need to amend the timeline and the procedures to consider 
funding for the 2016‐17 budget.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge and the draft 
policy are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  
Motion to adopt a social service policy to become effective for the 2017-18 budget year. 

 
41. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  A copy of the Appointment Committee’s report and the 
applications are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on 
the nominations. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 
 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
March 21, 2016 

Executive Session – 6:00 P.M. 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson,  Daniel E. Harris, 

Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Kathy Wilson and Alison Harris 
 
Councilors Absent: Councilor John M. Perreault 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk; Pender 

Makin, Assistant Superintendent of Schools; Steve Langsdorf, Town 
Attorney; Cathy Jamison, Assessor; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Marc 
Hagan, Police Commander; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Jeff Hutchinson, Codes Enforcement Officer; Dan 
Devereaux, Marine Warden; Paul Caron, School Facilities Manager; 
James Oikle, Business Manager for School Department; Terry Goan, 
Police Officer, and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked for roll call, and acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed. 
 
Executive Session: [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] Consultation with legal counsel  
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to go into executive session for a 
consultation with legal counsel per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). The motion carried with eight 
(8) yeas. 
 
Meeting Resumes 
 
The meeting resumed at 7:00 p.m. and Chair Brayman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
Chair Brayman made the following changes: postpone item 37 regarding Social Service Policy 
until April 4th; postpone item CA-f until April 4th; and place Item 36 prior to the Public 
Hearings. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  (This item was discussed at 7:06 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the minutes of March 7, 2016 
b) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 

001 Sub 000 Typ 313 
c) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 045 Lot 

003 Sub 000 Typ 281 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
 

d) Approval of a Quitclaim Deed for the mobile home on land depicted as Map 051 Lot 
001 Sub 000 Typ 140 

e) Permission to expend a 2016 Speed Enforcement Grant 
f) Adoption of a “Resolution Recognizing National Service Recognition Day” (tabled) 

 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded,  to approve the Consent Agenda items 
a – e.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of materials for CA-b, CA-c, CA-d, and CA-e will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments  (This item was discussed at 7:07 p.m.) 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, stated even if a person does not vote, they are still represented 
by the Council as the Councilors represent all of the people.  The Council must do what is good 
for community as well as the will of the people.  The “cash draw” cannot be the best way to 
make decisions. 
 
Correspondence  (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Councilor K. Wilson said she had received emails regarding the crosswalks between Coffin 
Street and Longfellow Avenue.  BPAC will be looking at this possible safety issue.   
 
Councilor Millett said there were many emails on the Styrofoam ban (Chair Brayman stated they 
were included in a packet provided to the Council.) 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  (This item was discussed at 7:11 p.m.) 

 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
 BDC 
 Cable TV Committee 
 Finance Committee 
 Teen Center Board 

 
Reports were given on the committees listed above. 
 
Chair Brayman appointed Councilor Millett to replace Councilor D. Harris on the Council Rules 
Subcommittee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
a) Financial update (This item was discussed at 7:18 p.m.) 
 
Julie Henze, Finance Director, provided this update. 
 
Manager Eldridge also spoke regarding the Mere Point Waste Water System, and responded to 
questions from Councilor Millett, Councilor Watson, and Councilor S. Wilson.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 
 

b) Report on Municipal Budget schedule and CIP (This item was discussed at 7:24 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this report. 
 
Chair Brayman and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
c) Presentation on the upcoming revaluation (This item was discussed at 7:28 p.m.) 
 
Cathy Jamison, Assessor, made this presentation and responded to questions from Councilor 
Millett, Chair Brayman, and Councilor Walker. 
 
(A copy of the Assessor’s press release will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
d) Upcoming 45th Anniversary for Amtrak (This item was discussed at 7:35 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of a letter from Amtrak will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
e) Update on high school boiler replacement (This item was discussed at 7:36 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from Councilor Walker 
and Councilor Millett. 
 
Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of Manager Eldridge’s memo will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Item 36 was done prior to the public hearings. 
 
31. The Town Council will hear public comments on a CDBG MicroEnterprise 

Assistance Program grant application for Pathways Rehabilitation Services, and 
will take any appropriate action. (Manager) This item was discussed at 7:47 p.m.     

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution 
Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community Development Block Grant 
Funds for Projects Undertaken by Pathways Rehabilitation Services.” The motion carried 
with eight (8) yeas. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
 

(A copy of a memo from Linda Smith, the MEA application, and adopted Resolution will be 
attached to the official minutes.) 
 
32. The Town Council will hear public comments for an ordinance to enact a ban on 

polystyrene foam in consumer packaging, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Walker and Councilor K. Wilson)  This item was discussed at 7:48 p.m. 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Walker introduced this item, and responded to questions from Councilor S. Wilson. 
 
The following people spoke regarding this item: 
Diane Schetky – Topsham – Bring Your Own Bag 
Sarah Lakeman, Sustainable Maine Project Director 
Lorel Nazzaro, 29 Pennell Way   
Averil Fessenden, 30 Miller Creek Road 
Alwyn Ecker, Simpson Point Road  
Carol Harrington, Thornton Oaks 
Jamie Ecker, 67 Simpson’s Point Road 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street 
Yvette Meunier, 35 Prospect St, Topsham 
Jay Plante, 81 Rossmore Road 
Henry Heyburn, Pennellville Road 
Becky Shepherd, 106 Union St, owner of Wild Oats Bakery 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street 
Bruce Kantner, 72 Rossmore Road 
Marcia Harrington, 71 Rossmore Road 
Jeanette MacNeille, 2 Brookside Rd, Topsham 
Punnie Edgerton, 29 McLellan Street 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to suspend the Council Rules to 
allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting.  
 
Chair Brayman, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Watson, Councilor Walker, and Councilor D. 
Harris spoke regarding this motion. 
 
Vote on motion: 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to suspend the Council Rules to 
allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting. The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  
Chair Brayman and Councilor Watson were opposed. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the Ordinance to enact 
a ban on polystyrene foam in consumer packaging, with enforcement to begin on October 
1, 2016.  
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor D. Harris, Councilor Walker, Councilor K. Wilson, Chair 
Brayman, and Councilor Watson spoke regarding this motion. 
 
Vote on motion: 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the Ordinance to enact 
a ban on polystyrene foam in consumer packaging, with enforcement to begin on October 
1, 2016. The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
33. The Town Council will hear public comments on a proposed “Ordinance 

Authorizing various Health, Safety and ADA Compliance Improvements at the 
Coffin Elementary School and the Brunswick Junior High School, with Total 
Project Costs Not to Exceed $1,517,664, and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds 
and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $934,729 (following loan forgiveness of 
$582,935),” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  This item was discussed 
at 8:41 p.m.      

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
James Oikle, School Department Business Manager, made a presentation. 
 
Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Mr. Oikle and Paul Caron, Facilities’ Manager for 
School Department, responded. 
 
Mr. Oikle responded to questions from Councilor D. Harris and Chair Brayman.  
 
Bill Thompson, Chair of School Board, responded to questions from Councilor K. Wilson, 
Councilor Millett, and Councilor D. Harris. 
 
Paul Caron responded to questions from Councilor Watson and Councilor Millett. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding this item.   
 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Councilor D. Harris moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to suspend the Council Rules to 
allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting.  
 
Councilor D. Harris, Chair Brayman, Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Watson 
and Councilor A. Harris spoke on this motion. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge and Mr. Caron responded. 
 
Vote on Motion: 
Councilor D. Harris moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to suspend the Council Rules to 
allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting. The motion carried with six (6) yeas. 
Chair Brayman and Councilor Millett were opposed. 
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt an “Ordinance 
Authorizing various Health, Safety and ADA Compliance Improvements at the Coffin 
Elementary School and the Brunswick Junior High School, with Total Project Costs Not to 
Exceed $1,517,664, and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount 
not to Exceed $934,729 (following loan forgiveness of $582,935).”  
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Chair Brayman spoke regarding the motion. 
 
Vote on Motion: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt an “Ordinance 
Authorizing various Health, Safety and ADA Compliance Improvements at the Coffin 
Elementary School and the Brunswick Junior High School, with Total Project Costs Not to 
Exceed $1,517,664, and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount 
not to Exceed $934,729 (following loan forgiveness of $582,935).” The motion carried with 
seven (7) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance, a memo from Mr. Perzanoski with additional supporting 
materials, and the presentation will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
34. The Town Council will hear public comments on a “Moratorium on New 

Development in the Natural Resources Protection Zone,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager)  This item was discussed at 9:21 p.m.  

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
The following people spoke from the public: 
Richard Knox, 81 Simpson’s Point Road 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street 
Henry Heyburn, Pennellville Road  
 
Councilor Walker asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge responded. 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 
For clarification, Manager Eldridge stated that the Town Attorney indicated the intent of the 
Moratorium was not to apply to projects that are underway and it will not impact the Miller Point 
Project. 
 
Councilor D. Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Millett and Councilor D. Harris asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge 
responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor A. Harris and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to suspend the Council Rules to 
allow the Council to vote on this item at this meeting.  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt a “Moratorium on New 
Development in the Natural Resources Protection Zone (NRPZ).”  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Moratorium will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
35. The Town Council will hear public comments on proposed amendments to the 

Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” 
Section 10-26(6) to increase the number of food vendors on the town mall from four 
to five, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  This item was discussed at 
9:42 p.m. 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced the item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Brayman indicated there was unanimous consent of the Council to suspend the rules 
to allow for this item to be voted on tonight. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt amendments to the 
Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” Section 10-
26(6) to increase the number of food vendors on the town mall from four to five.   
 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 8 
 

 
 

Councilor Millett, Councilor Walker, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor D. Harris, Chair Brayman 
and Councilor K. Wilson spoke regarding the motion. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to adopt amendments to the 
Municipal Code of Ordinance Chapter 10 “Licenses and Business Regulations” Section 10-
26(6) to increase the number of food vendors on the town mall from four to five.  The 
motion carried with five (5) yeas.  Councilor Walker, Councilor D. Harris, and Councilor 
Millett were opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance changes will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
36. The Town Council will consider requesting that the Town Manager direct the 

Planning Department to require a special use permit review of the Miller Point 
revetment project, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Walker)  This 
item was discussed at 7:41 p.m.)  

 
This item was done prior to the public hearings. 
 
Councilor Walker introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to table this item to April 4, 2016, 
pending the results of discussions and agreements with the Kings.  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas. 
 
37. The Town Council will consider adopting the proposed Social Service Policy, and 

will take any appropriate action.  (Social Service Committee)   
 
This item will come back at the April 4th meeting. 
 
38. The Town Council will consider a request for a Sellers of Prepared Food on Public 

Ways license for outdoor seating for Little Saigon, 44 Maine Street, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager)   This item was discussed at 9:51 p.m.  

 
Fran Smith spoke regarding this item and responded to questions from Councilor Millett.  
 
Councilor Walker moved, Chair Brayman seconded, to approve a request for Sellers of 
Prepared Food on Public Ways license for outdoor seating for Little Saigon, located at 44 
Maine Street.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:53 p.m. 



Town Council Minutes 
March 21, 2016 
Page 9 
 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
March 25, 2016 
 

April 4, 2016 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA -F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - H 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 









 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - I 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 









CONSENT AGENDA - J 
BACK UP MATERIALS 







CONSENT AGENDA - K 
BACK UP MATERIALS 









CONSENT AGENDA - L 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	National	Service	Day	031616.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 March	17,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Resolution	Recognizing	National	Service	Recognition	Day	
	
	
	
The	National	League	of	Cities	has	set	April	5,	2016	as	a	day	to	recognize	those	who	volunteer	and	
provide	service	to	communities.		The	volunteer	service	efforts	often	result	in	savings	to	local	
governments	or	allow	for	the	accomplishment	of	projects	that	might	not	have	otherwise	been	
completed.		Chair	Brayman	requested	that	the	attached	Resolution	Recognizing	National	Service	
Day	be	placed	on	the	agenda	to	allow	the	Town	Council	to	formally	recognize	service	and	
volunteerism	in	our	community.			
	
In	March	2014,	the	Town	Council	approved	a	similar	resolution.		That	year,	the	Town	utilized	
personnel	from	the	Maine	Conservation	Corps	AmeriCorps	Veteran	Community	Leader	program	to	
assist	with	trail	development	at	the	Kate	Furbish	Preserve.		The	assistance	allowed	for	work	to	be	
done	that	otherwise	would	not	have	been	done	with	Town	resources.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Attachment	
	



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING NATIONAL SERVICE RECOGNITION DAY 

WHEREAS, service to others is a hallmark of the American character, and central to how we 
meet our challenges; and 

WHEREAS, municipalities are increasingly turning to national service and volunteerism as a 
cost-effective strategy to meet municipal needs; and 

WHEREAS, national service participants serve in more than 60,000 locations across the 
country, bolstering the civic, neighborhood, and other organizations vital to our economic and 
social well-being; and  

WHEREAS, national service represents a unique public-private partnership that invests in 
community solutions and leverages non-federal resources to strengthen community impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation for National and Community Service is joining with others, across 
the country, to recognize April 5, 2016 as a Day of Recognition for National Service. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the  Town Council recognizes April 5, 2016, 
as National Service Recognition Day, and encourages residents to recognize the positive impact 
of national service in our town; to thank those who serve; and to find ways to give back to their 
communities.   

Proposed to Town Council:  April 4 2016 

Adopted by Town Council:   

O:\council\agendas\packets\backup\36 National Service Day 2016.docx 







MANAGER’S REPORT
OVERVIEW OF ITEMS



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Manager's	Report	040416.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 March	31,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Town	Manager’s	Report	(a)	–	(c)	
	 		
	
	
	
Below	is	a	brief	summary	of	items	included	in	the	April	4,	2016	Manager’s	Report.	
	
Project	Tracking	Report	(a)	
	
The	report,	tracking	the	projects	deemed	of	interest	to	the	Town	Council,	is	included	in	the	packet.		
The	“current	update”	field	identifies	the	last	activity	on	the	project.		In	this	report,	completed	
projects	have	been	deleted.	
	
Budget	Update	(b)	
	
Based	on	discussions	at	your	last	meeting,	we	have	proposed	a	revised	budget	calendar.		The	
revised	calendar	proposes	to	add	three	workshop	dates.		Of	course,	the	Town	Council	may	choose	
to	add	those	or	not.			
	
Special	Permit	for	U‐Haul	on	Cressey	Road	(c)	
	
At	its	March	22,	2016	meeting	the	Planning	Board	granted	a	special	permit	allowing	U‐Haul	to	
occupy	a	major	portion	of	the	former	Cooper	Industries	building	on	Cressey	Road.		Because	the	use	
requires	a	special	permit,	the	Town	Council	may	elect	to	take	jurisdiction	over	the	application.		
Please	see	the	memos	in	the	packet	for	more	details.	
	
	



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Town	of	Brunswick	‐	Project	Tracking		(Council)

Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Capital Improvement Plan 2016-201791

Current Update:

CIP delivered to Town Council.

3/21/2016

1 - Major 0 - Required In Progress Adopt 2016-17 CIP

Comments:

3/21/16  CIP delivered to Town Council 
Municipal CIP projects have been reviewed by Finance 
Committee.

Municipal Budget 2016-201792

Current Update:

Preparing Manager's recommended budget.
Departments presenting to Finance Committee.

3/30/2016

1 - Major 0 - Required In Progress Adopt 2016-17 Municipal Budget

Comments:

See attached budget schedule and documents.

MRRA Tax Appeal2

Current Update:

Settlement date extended.  
TIF and CEA sent to DECD for review.

Public hearing required.

3/23/2016

1 - Major 2 - High In Progress MRRA Tax Appeal Case 

Comments:

Settlement Reached.  Implement via new Development 
Programs
Need to schedule PH on program amendments.
Negotiate the credit enhancement agreement.

Zoning Ordinance Re-write7

Current Update:

ZORC draft to Planning Board in April

3/30/2016

1 - Major 2 - High In Progress Re-write of Zoning Ordinance

Comments:

See project timeline.

3/30/2016 8:30:05 PM Page 1 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Graham Road Landfill4

Current Update:

Pending completion of solid waste alternatives report from 
Woodard and Curran.  Conversations on-going with MDEP.

3/30/2016

1 - Major 2 - High In Progress Solid Waste Committee Review of Landfill Options
Solid Waste Plan start date

Comments:

Solid Waste Committee Plan to Remain Open or Close
Legislation passed extending reimbursement window

State Revolving Loan Fund117

Current Update:

Ordinance adopted.
MMBB application approved.

School Department presentation to Town Council 03/07.

3/30/2016

1 - Major 2 - High In Progress Fund Improvements at Junior High and Coffin 
Schools

Comments:

DOE has approved Brunswick for funding.
Brunswick has notified MMBB and needs to file an application
School Board approved projects and borrowing
Borrowing Ordinance Must Be Adopted by Town Council - 
schedule for 3/7/16.

Solar Installation at Rec Center32

Current Update:

New pricing received on 3/2.  Evaluating.

Considering whether schedule will now work for roofers.

3/30/2016

1 - Major 2 - High On Hold Explore Solar Installation at Recreation Center

Comments:

See attached memos and Gantt chart.

See attached project details.

Revaluation18

Current Update:

Video shot on 3/29/2016, needs to be edited and voice over

3/29/2016

1 - Major 2 - High In Progress

Comments:

Revaluation database created on 3/24/2016
Start Up Meeting Scheduled for 3/14/2016
Contract Signed (3/9/2016)
Contract Awarded to KRT (3/1/2016)
Responses to RFP being reviewed.
RFP Issued 
Included in 2015-2016 CIP
Prepare RFP
Prepare Bond Ordinance

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 2 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Mare Brook Watershed Project111

Current Update:

Consultant selected.
Technical Advisory Committee meeting.

3/1/2016

1 - Major 3 - Normal In Progress Investigate health of impaired stream

Comments:

Master Plan Implementation 
Committee

39

Current Update:

See MPIC meeting minutes for details.

3/1/2016

1 - Major 3 - Normal In Progress Implement Downtown and Pleasant Street Master 
Plan

Comments:

See Master Plan Timeline
Review Funding Opportunities
Phase as appropriate

Cook's Corner Road Improvements 
and TIF

3

Current Update:

Planning to meet with key property owners.
Property sold to Katz.  Preliminary conversations about 
improvements at Cook's Corner.

3/30/2016

1 - Major 5 - Defer Deferred Cook's Corner Road Improvements; connection of 
Gurnet Rd to Wal-Mart

Comments:

Prepare engineering analysis and cost estimates
Coordinate extinguishment of cross easements
Develop TIF funding model
Develop bond ordinance

Deferred due to pending sale of DDR properties

Freeport Dispatch Contract108

Current Update:

Contacted Freeport about extending contract.

3/30/2016

2 - Large 2 - High In Progress Negotiate an Extension to the Contract

Comments:

The contract expires on June 30, 2016.

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 3 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

MRRA TIF Requests1

Current Update:

Need to set up Council TIF Committee meeting to review 
additional requests from MRRA.

3/1/2016

2 - Large 2 - High In Progress Amend development programs, establish credit 
enhancement agreement with MRRA

Comments:

Amendment of development programs and credit 
enhancement agreement with MRRA based on MOA signed 
10/7/15.
Town Council approval required.  Development program 
amendment also requires DECD approval.

Streetlight Policy and Reduction Plan26

Current Update:

Draft of street lighting policy in development

1/20/2016

2 - Large 2 - High Deferred Develop Streetlight reduction plan

Comments:

Develop street light policy based on traffic and pedestrian 
safety.
Preliminary to street light reduction plan. 

Summary of cost/benefits
Policy on placement of streetlights
Trial sections of town.

Mere Point Wastewater District71

Current Update:

Letters regarding rate increase sent to property owners.  
Completed initial review of system and recent history of 
operating costs.  Setting up meeting with Richard Burns & Dana 
Smith to understand status of contractual agreement with 
residents.
Developing capital and operating budgets.  Reviewing fees.

3/30/2016

2 - Large 2 - High In Progress Address Several Issues Relating to the MP 
Wastewater District

Comments:

Review annual operating costs; audit the billing units; identify 
capital replacement costs; identify solution for holding tank; 
and propose new rates.
Evaluate existing fields and pumps.
 
2.  Field Replacement
 
3. Fee Charge

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 4 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Solarize Brunswick60

Current Update:

ReVision extending program through May 2016. See attachment.
Update to TC thro R&S Committee report from Chair Brayman 
on 3/7/2016.

3/10/2016

2 - Large 2 - High In Progress Develop and implement Solalrize Brunswick Program

Comments:

Project exceeded target of Tier 5 200 kw discount; actual sign 
up to date = 450 kW. Program extended to end of May 2016.

Revenues and Fees89

Current Update:

Fees approved by Town Council

3/1/2016

2 - Large 2 - High In Progress Review of All Fees and Charges

Comments:

Review and update all fees, fines and charges in Town 
Ordinance:
1.  Fire Dept - updated ordinance and fees to be presented to 
Council 2/1/16
2.  Public Works - possible storm drain connection fee
3.  Town Clerk - schedule review
4.  Codes Enforcement - schedule review
5.  Police Dept - schedule review
6.  Solid Waste - schedule review

Ocean Access57

Current Update: 1/20/2016

2 - Large 3 - Normal Requested Explore Additional Opportunities for Ocean Access

Comments:

Multi-unit apartment inspections58

Current Update:

Fire Department has communicated with Portland FD

1/25/2016

2 - Large 3 - Normal In Progress Explore fee based apartment inspections.  Draft 
ordinance.

Comments:

In the queue since 2011.  Request by the Council to explore 
multi unit apartment building inspections.

Website Upgrades94

Current Update:

Requested not yet authorized

2/1/2016

2 - Large 3 - Normal Requested Study and Make Recommended Improvements

Comments:

Study Recommended Improvements.
Social Media
Texts

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 5 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

New Meadows Restoration99

Current Update:

Recent call from ACOE asking if Brunswick wished to stay on list 
for potential funding.

1/25/2016

2 - Large 3 - Normal Requested Remove the "dam" on Bath road.  Remove the lake 
and restore.

Comments:

ACE has Brunswick on the list for potential funding.

Riverwalk38

Current Update:

No recent activity.  Attempting to coordinate with 
replacement/rehab of Frank Wood Bridge.

1/20/2016

2 - Large 5 - Defer Deferred Implementation of Riverwalk Plan.

Comments:

Implementation of Riverwalk Plan.
Check with MDOT on Funding.

Pleasant and Mill St Property 
Acquisition

59

Current Update:

Preliminary VRAP completed.
Expected to close by May 1.

Contacted by MDOT about possible intersection improvements.

3/30/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High In Progress Property Acquisition

Comments:

P&S reached with Cumberland Farms.
VRAP application submitted.

Meeting Minutes & Indexing30

Current Update:

Spoke with several vendors and waiting on quotes to further 
evaluate them

3/25/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High In Progress Review and Recommend Minutes Indexing

Comments:

Fran Smith and Bryan Cobb to investigate different ways to 
improve the searchability of meetings and minutes; to make 
recommendation.

Town Hall Trim Work15

Current Update:

Developing specifications.
Developing bond ordinance.
Met with John Foster, TM, and rep for Warren Construction to 
discuss scope of work and suggestions for bid process.

3/4/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High In Progress Develop Specifications and Bid Project
Bond Ordinance for Funding

Comments:

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 6 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Council Rules Committee97

Current Update:

Charge written; committee appointed

3/1/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High Requested Rules Committee to Review and Update Council Rules

Comments:

Draft a committee charge

Downeaster Idling31

Current Update:

No recent activity.  NNEPRA believes the layover facility will 
resolve this issue.

1/20/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High Deferred Reduce Idle Time for Downeaster

Comments:

Meet with NNEPRA and Amtrak.
Explore Options.
 
Need to discuss cold weather options.
Anti-idling bill in legislature.  Meet with NNEPRA and Amtrak.

Simpson's Point96

Current Update:

Waiting on decision from IFW

3/1/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High On Hold Open Access to Propeller Driven Boats

Comments:

Request made to IFW

Riverside Cemetery70

Current Update:

No recent activity.

1/20/2016

3 - Medium 2 - High Deferred Re-establish Riverside Cemetery Corporation

Comments:

Review the legal options with Town Attorney.  Time consuming 
and potentially expensive process.

Frank Wood Bridge37

Current Update:

MDOT prepared to present recommendations.
Presentation to Brunswick Town Council on 4/19

3/30/2016

3 - Medium 3 - Normal In Progress MDOT Project Replacement or Rehabilitation

Comments:

Possible connection to Riverwalk and Maine Street projects.

Extended RR Quiet Zones9

Current Update:

Project on hold pending new train schedules.

1/20/2016

3 - Medium 5 - Defer Deferred Study alternatives for Quite Zones

Comments:

Consultants to make recommendations

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 7 of 8



Task Title Class Priority Status Description

Social Services Policy45

Current Update:

Being considered by the Town Council

3/25/2016

3 - Medium 5 - Defer In Progress Council Committee to draft social services policy

Comments:

Second draft ready for Council consideration on April 4th.

Bus Transportation61

Current Update:

TIGER Grants will be available soon.

3/2/2016

3 - Medium 5 - Defer Deferred Review options for bus transportation to Portland

Comments:

Explore Metro expansion and funding.

TV3 Website, VOD, & Programming12

Current Update:

Improvements made.  Continue to evaluate.

1/20/2016

4 - Small 3 - Normal In Progress TV3 Website Improvements

Comments:

TV3 Website Improvements
Improve reliability of streaming
 
Streaming reliability and VOD improved

Ambulance Fees Update112

Current Update:

Fire Department and Finance Department have reviewed fees.  
Expect recommendation by June.

3/30/2016

4 - Small 3 - Normal Requested Update the Ambulance Fees

Comments:

Consider one free non-transport.

Complete Streets Policy65

Current Update:

Reviewed draft BBPAC policy and met with Chair.  Drafting a 
proposed policy.

3/20/2016

4 - Small 3 - Normal Requested Develop Complete Streets Policy

Comments:

Policy should be advisory for Town reconstruction projects.

Human Rights Task Force64

Current Update:

Task force continues to meet

3/1/2016

4 - Small 3 - Normal In Progress Assign task force to look into issues of race and 
gender.

Comments:

Task force established.
Considering membership and strategy

Total 37

3/30/2016 8:30:06 PM Page 8 of 8



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Town of Brunswick

2015‐16 Meeting Calendar

RESPONSIBLE DATE DAY TIME ACTION COMMENTS

Manager 1/11/2016 Mon Munic Budget Information and Instructions to 

Departments
Depts 2/5/2016 Fri Munic Depts Personnel Budgets Due

Depts 2/19/2016 Fri Munic Department Budgets Due

Manager 2/22/2016 Mon Munic Department Budget Reviews Begins

School Dept 3/2/2016 Wed 7:00 PM School budget workshop

Fin Committee 3/3/2016 Thu 7:00 PM Finance Committee workshop

Budget presentations

People Plus, Fire Dept, Finance Dept

Assessor 3/11/2016 Fri Assessor Valuation Valuation Estimates

School Dept 3/16/2016 Wed 7:00 PM School budget workshop

Fin Committee 3/17/2016 Thu 7:00 PM Finance Committee workshop

Budget presentations

BDA, Planning & Codes Dept, Police Dept

Council 3/21/2016 Mon 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Budget Update
School Dept 3/23/2016 Wed 7:00 PM School Board

Review School Budget

School Prelim Budget Numbers approved

Fin Committee 3/31/2016 Thu 7:00 PM Finance Committee workshop

Budget presentations

CML, Public Works Dept, Parks & Rec Dept

Manager 4/1/2016 Fri Munic Department Budget Reviews Ends

Council 4/4/2016 Mon 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Budget Update
School Dept 4/6/2016 Wed 7:00 PM School budget public forum

School Dept 4/13/2016 Wed 7:00 PM School Board

Finalize School Budget
Manager 4/19/2016 Tue Present Manager's Budget to 

Council
Council 4/19/2016 Tue 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Mgr Budget / Set PH

Council Receives Budget

Council Sets Public Hearing
Council 4/21/2016 Thu 6:00 PM Council CIP/Budget Workshop Manager's Proposed CIP

Public 4/22/2016 Fri Public Notice  Clerk Sends Public Hearing Notice

Council 4/25/2016 Mon 6:00 PM Council Workshop School Budget Presentation

Council 4/28/2016 Thu 6:00 PM OPEN DATE

Council 5/2/2016 Mon 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Council 5/5/2016 Thu 6:00 PM Council Budget Workshop

Council 5/12/2016 Thu 7:00 PM Public Hearing

Budget and CIP

Charter Section 502

Council 5/16/2016 Mon 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Council 5/19/2016 Thu 6:00 PM Council Workshop

Budget Deliberations
Council 5/26/2016 Thu 7:00 PM Special Council Meeting

Budget & CIP Adoption

Adoption 10 or More Days after Public Hearing

Council 6/6/2016 Mon 7:00 PM Regular Council Meeting

Public 6/14/2016 Tue 8:00 AM School Budget Referendum 20‐A MRSA 1486

O:\Finance\Finance Committee\Calendars\2015‐16 meeting Calendar2015‐16 3/31/2016



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Special	Permit	033116.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 March	31,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Planning	Board	Special	Permit	Approval	
	 U‐Haul	Moving	and	Storage	(Case	#16‐009)	
	
	
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick’s	Zoning	Ordinance	gives	the	Town	Council	an	opportunity	to	exercise	
jurisdiction	over	the	special	permits	approved	by	the	Planning	Board.		The	Town	Council	must	act	
on	this	opportunity	within	thirty	(30)	days	of	the	Planning	Board’s	approval.	
	
In	this	case,	the	Planning	Board,	at	its	March	22,	2016	meeting,	granted	a	special	permit	that	allows	
U‐Haul	of	New	Hampshire	and	Maine	to	locate	a	storage	and	equipment	rental	operation	at	1	
Cressey	Road	in	the	building	formerly	occupied	by	Cooper	Industries.		
	
If	the	Town	Council	decides	to	exercise	jurisdiction,	it	is	required	to	hold	a	public	hearing.		
Following	the	hearing,	the	Town	Council	may	ratify,	reverse	or	modify	the	decision	of	the	Planning	
Board.		If	the	Town	Council	does	not	exercise	jurisdiction	over	the	Special	Permit	application,	the	
Planning	Board's	decision	will	take	effect	thirty	(30)	days	from	the	date	of	the	Planning	Board’s	
approval.		In	this	case,	should	the	Town	Council	wish	to	exercise	jurisdiction,	it	must	vote	to	do	so	
by	April	21st.	
	
Please	find	a	memo	and	related	attachments	from	Anna	Breinich,	Director	of	Planning	and	
Development.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
Attachments	
	













ITEM 39
BACK UP MATERIALS 









ITEM 36
BACK UP MATERIALS 



	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\S	Walker	Miller	Point	Memo	031616.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 Steve	Walker	
	 Councilor	–	District	2	
	
DATE:	 March	17,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Miller	Point		Project	
	
	
	
Action:		
	
The	Town	Council	will	consider	requesting	that	Town	Manager	direct	the	planning	department	to	
require	a	special	use	permit	review	of	the	Miller	Point	revetment	project.	
	
Suggested	Motion:		
	
Motion	to	request	that	Town	Manager	direct	the	planning	department	to	require	a	special	use	
permit	review	of	the	Miller	Point	revetment	project	
	
Background:	
	
Per	the	Town	Attorney	memo	of	March	2,	2016	there	is	a	significant	omission	to	the	Brunswick	
Zoning	Ordinance.		Specifically,	the	35	land	uses	(emphasis	added)	required	for	regulation	by	State	
Shoreland	Zoning,	and	as	required	to	be	administered	at	the	local	level,	do	not	appear	in	
Brunswick’s	Natural	Resources	Protection	Zone	(our	version	of	shoreland	zone)	land	use	table.			
	
One	specific	example	very	pertinent	to	the	Miller	Point	revetment	project	is	that	state	mandated	
shoreland	zoning	includes	“filling	and	earth	moving	of	>10	cubic	yards”	as	a	regulated	land	use.		
Michael	Morse	of	MDEP’s	Shoreland	Zoning	Program	has	verified	that	filling	and	earth	moving	is	
indeed	a	use	by	state	law,	and	has	verified	that	this	use	has	been	omitted	in	Brunswick’s	ordinance.	
Chapter	2,	section	I‐2	of	Brunswick’s	zoning	ordinance	(Special	Permits	for	Unclassified	and	
Omitted	Uses),	states	that	“any	use	that	is	an	Unclassified	or	Omitted	Use	and	that	is	not	otherwise	
prohibited	in	Chapter	3	is	eligible	for	consideration	based	on	the	requirements	of	Section	701”.	
	
As	confirmed	by	MDEP,	“filling	and	earth	moving	of	>10	cubic	yards”	is	a	regulated	use,	and	it	is	
clear	that	this	use	has	been	omitted.		Therefore	I	am	requesting	that	the	Town	Manager	direct	the	
planning	department	to	require	that	a	special	use	permit	review	of	the	Miller	Point	revetment	
project	move	forward	through	the	typical	planning	board	process.	
	
This	project	is	located	in	an	area	of	Brunswick	that	has	been	designated	as	being	of	statewide	
ecological	significance	due	to	the	diversity	of	high	value	intertidal	habitat	types;	the	project	is	
located	in	a	significant	viewshed	as	identified	in	the	2002	Brunswick	Parks	Recreation	and	Open	
Space	Plan,	the	2014	Harbor	Management	Plan	highlights	the	need	for	thoughtful	and	appropriate	
approaches	to	combat	shoreline	erosion,	and	the	Marine	Resource	Committee		has	identified	Clay	
Cove	(the	mudflat	immediately	adjacent	to	the	proposed	project)	as	one	of	Brunswick’s	most	
prolific	and	diverse	marine	resource	areas.	
	 	



	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\S	Walker	Miller	Point	Memo	031616.docx	

	
For	each	of	these	reasons,	I	believe	that	we	need	to	exercise	our	ability	under	Chapter	2,	section	I‐2	
of	Brunswick’s	zoning	ordinance	(Special	Permits	for	Unclassified	and	Omitted	Uses)	to	ensure	that	
this	project	has	had	sufficient	review.		Five	hundred	feet	of	rip‐rap	covering	an	undeveloped	stretch	
of	Brunswick’s	coastline	is	a	permanent	and	significant	change	to	the	character	and	geology	of	
upper	Miller	Bay.		To	date,	there	has	not	even	been	a	review	of	this	project	by	a	professional	
engineer.		While	the	Special	Use	Permit	process	may	not	materially	change	the	scope	of	the	project,	
the	Town	will	at	least	be	able	to	demonstrate	that	the	project	has	been	vetted	publicly	and	ensure	
that	the	design	has	been	professionally	reviewed	and	is	compatible	with	upper	Middle	Bay’s	
irreplaceable	natural	resources.	
	



 
 

 
ITEM 28 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  January 27, 2016 
TO:  Town Council 
FROM: Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
RE: Tallying write-in votes in a municipal election 
 
This memo is to provide information and a recommendation as to how the Town of Brunswick 
should handle municipal write-in votes, as required under Chapter 160 Public Law “An Act 
Regarding Write-In Candidates in Municipal and City Elections” that was passed by the legislature 
in 2015.   
 
This law requires the municipal officers to determine if they wish to follow State Election law Title 
21-A, or Title 30-A with regard to counting write-in votes.  Prior to this law, the law required 
municipal ballot clerks count all valid write-in votes in a municipal election.  The Brunswick Town 
Charter states that, as much as possible, Elections in the Town of Brunswick are governed by State 
Election Law.  This has always been determined to be Title 21-A; Title 30-A deals with Municipal 
Elections and is used when Title 21-A is not applicable, as had been the case with write-ins.  (After 
consultation with the Town Attorney and insufficient time between passage and the November 2015 
Election, it was determined that the Town of Brunswick would continue to count every valid write-in 
vote at the November 2015 Election, and go to the Council for action in early 2016.) 
 
Title 21-A requires write-in candidates be declared in order for votes for that candidate to be 
counted, except when there is no candidate on the ballot or a candidate withdraws.  (As a point of 
information, the voting machines only separate ballots that have the declared write-in indicator filled 
in, so election clerks review and count only the write-ins for the name of a declared person.  All 
other write-ins are considered blanks and placed with fully counted ballots.)  Currently, Title 21-A 
requires declaration 45 days prior to Election.  Brunswick Town Charter requires nomination papers 
be submitted between 100 and 60 days prior to Election, affording a potential write-in candidate an 
additional two weeks to choose to declare their write-in candidacy and have any votes for them 
counted on Election Day.  However, there is a bill under consideration this session to change the 
time the candidate must declare to be a write-in candidate to 60 days.   
 
The other option provided in this new law falls under Title 30-A, should the municipality choose not 
to be governed by Title 21-A with regard to write-in candidacy.  Title 30-A lays out three scenarios 
when write-ins must be counted:  

(1) The printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the office;  
(2) A properly nominated candidate for the office listed on the ballot withdraws from the race 
before or on Election Day; or 
(3) The number of write-in votes for an office as determined by a machine count or initial 
hand count exceeds the number of votes in that count for a candidate printed on the ballot. 

 
This option also presents what I would refer to as a “catch-all”,  where votes for write-in candidates 
may be counted even if none of the criteria listed above are met in a municipality that has not voted 
to be governed by Title 21-A.  To put this into context, I reviewed the tally sheets from last 
November’s Election where Election Clerks tallied approximately 96 write-ins for uncontested 
Councilor At Large, with only five people getting more than a single vote (four people getting two 
votes and one getting three.)   



A middle ground between the ‘catch-all” and the three scenarios listed would be to also count valid 
write-ins for any race where a person declared to the Town Clerk their intention to be a write-in 
candidate.  (As all municipal candidates are required to file campaign finance paperwork with the 
Town Clerk, even if declaring an exception from reporting, a person carrying out a write-in 
candidacy would, by that filing, be making declaration to the Town Clerk.)  The Town Attorney sees 
no restriction on the Town imposing this additional requirement. 
 
I am requesting the Council make a decision to either take steps to follow Title 21-A that requires a 
write-in candidate to declare their candidacy by 45 days prior to an Election, which would require 
setting a public hearing; or to follow Title 30-A. If the Council chooses to follow Title 30-A, I 
request that the Council determine whether or not they want all valid write-in votes counted at every 
Election, only count them when any of the three scenarios listed above occur, or with the addition of 
the fourth criteria if a person declares their intention to the Town Clerk.  This determination will 
provide clear direction for Election officials on Election night.  
 
It is my recommendation that the Council support counting the write-ins under Title 30-A when  

1) The printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the office;  
(2) A properly nominated candidate for the office listed on the ballot withdraws from the race 
before or on Election Day; or 
(3) The number of write-in votes for an office as determined by a machine count or initial 
hand count exceeds the number of votes in that count for a candidate printed on the ballot; or   
(4) A person has declared to the Town Clerk in writing no later than the Friday before the 
Election his/her intention to be a write-in candidate. 

 
As always, I will honor the decision of the Council; however, I do request that formal direction be 
provided.  I have attached a copy of the public law for your review. 



 Page 1 - 127LR0650(03)-1 

 

 

STATE OF MAINE 

_____ 

IN THE YEAR OF OUR LORD 

TWO THOUSAND AND FIFTEEN 

_____ 

S.P. 219 - L.D. 626 

An Act Regarding Write-in Candidates in Municipal and City Elections 

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows: 

Sec. 1.  30-A MRSA §2501, sub-§3 is enacted to read: 

3.  Determining and counting write-in votes.  A municipality may choose the 

method of determining and counting write-in votes according to this subsection.  Once a 

municipality has voted to accept the option under this subsection, the option applies to all 

municipal elections until the municipal officers hold a public hearing and the legislative 

body of the municipality votes to rescind the option at least 90 days before the next 
election of candidates by secret ballot. 

A.  After the municipal officers hold a public hearing, at least 90 days prior to an 

election of candidates by secret ballot, the legislative body of a municipality may 

vote to be governed by the provisions of Title 21-A, section 696, subsection 2, 

paragraph C and Title 21-A, section 722-A.  Votes for a write-in candidate are 

counted only if that candidate has filed a timely declaration of write-in candidacy 

with the municipal clerk in accordance with Title 21-A, section 722-A, except that 

votes for write-in candidates who have not filed a declaration of write-in candidacy 

must be counted if: 

(1)  The printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the 

office; or 

(2)  A properly nominated candidate for the office listed on the ballot withdraws 

from the race before or on election day. 

B.  In a municipality that has not voted under paragraph A to be governed by Title 

21-A, section 696, subsection 2, paragraph C and Title 21-A, section 722-A, votes 

cast for write-in candidates must be counted if: 

(1)  The printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the 

office; 

(2)  A properly nominated candidate for the office listed on the ballot withdraws 

from the race before or on election day; or 

GOVERNOR'S 

VETO 

OVERRIDDEN 

  
JUNE 11, 2015 

CHAPTER 
  

160 
  

PUBLIC LAW 



 

 Page 2 - 127LR0650(03)-1 

 

(3)  The number of write-in votes for an office as determined by a machine count 

or initial hand count exceeds the number of votes in that count for a candidate 

printed on the ballot. 

Votes for write-in candidates may be counted even if none of the criteria listed in 

subparagraphs (1) to (3) are met in a municipality that has not voted to be governed 

by Title 21-A, section 696, subsection 2, paragraph C and Title 21-A, section 722-A. 

Nothing in this subsection requires a municipal clerk to count or tally write-in votes for a 

fictitious person, a deceased person or a person from outside the municipality when 

residency is a qualification of office or who is otherwise not qualified to be a candidate 

for the office for which the person is a write-in candidate. 



JULY 2015 MAINE TOWNSMAN 
 
Explanation of LD 626 – An Act Regarding Write-in Candidates in Municipal and City 
Elections.  PL 2015, c. 160 
 
Current law requires municipal ballot clerks to count all write-in votes in a municipal election 
regardless of the number of write-in votes cast. This Act amends that requirement in several 
ways: (1) the Act allows the legislative body of any municipality that does not already follow the 
state election provisions provided under Title 21-A, and instead relies on municipal election law 
provided in Title 30-A, to adopt according to certain procedures the two provisions in Title 21-A 
that require write-in candidates to declare their candidacy to the municipal election clerk at least 
45 days before any election in order to be considered a viable write-in candidate, and 
subsequently be governed by those provisions unless and until the legislative body chooses to 
opt-out of that process; (2) for those municipalities that do not choose to adopt the Title 21-A 
provisions regarding write in candidates, and as a way of limiting the mandate to formally count 
the ballots cast for all write in candidates, the Act requires the formal counting of those ballots 
only when (a) the printed ballot does not include a properly nominated candidate for the office, 
(b) the properly nominated candidate withdraws from the race before or on election day, or (c) 
the number of write-in votes exceeds the number of votes for a candidate printed on the ballot; 
(3) the Act expressly allows a municipality that has not chosen to adopt the Title 21-A provisions 
regarding write-in candidates to formally count all ballots cast for write in candidates even if the 
counting is not mandated by law; and (4) the Act makes it clear that election clerks are not 
required to count or tally write-in votes for write-in candidates that are fictitious, deceased, or 
expressly unqualified such as a non-resident when residency is a qualification for office. 



ITEM 40
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
	

OFFICE	OF	THE	TOWN	MANAGER	
	

O:\Council\Council	By	Year\Council	2016\Memo	Social	Service	Agency	Funding	031716.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 March	17,	2016	
	
SUBJECT:	 Social	Service	Agency	Funding	Policy		
	
	
At	the	Town	Council’s	October	5,	2015	meeting,	it	received	a	draft	social	service	agency	funding	
policy	from	a	committee	comprised	of	Councilors	J.	Perreault,	K.	Wilson,	and	D.	Harris.		The	draft	
was	presented	for	the	Council’s	consideration	and	feedback.			
	
Attached	please	find	a	revised	draft	for	the	Council’s	consideration.		Given	where	we	are	in	the	
2016‐17	budget	process	and	the	timeline	contemplated	in	the	draft	policy,	the	Council	should	
consider	adopting	the	policy	but	not	implementing	it	until	the	2017‐18	budget.		Otherwise,	the	
Council	will	need	to	amend	the	timeline	and	the	procedures	to	consider	funding	for	the	2016‐17	
budget.	
	
	
	
	
Attachment	



 

	 	
	 Page	1	of	4	
	
O:\Council\Council	Committees\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT	021616.docx			 Printed	on:		3/17/16	

Town	of	Brunswick	
Social	Services	Funding	Policy	

	
	
Purpose	of	this	Policy	
	
The	purpose	of	this	policy	is	to	establish	guidelines	to	be	used	by	the	Town	Council	in	the	review	of	
grant	funding	requests	from	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations.	
	
Background		
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	provides	many	services	to	its	inhabitants	in	the	course	of	fulfilling	its	
responsibilities	as	a	municipality.		Certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations	provide	
services	to	members	of	the	public,	some	of	which	are	similar	to	the	services	that	the	Town	of	
Brunswick	could	provide	in	accordance	with	Maine	law.		The	Town	of	Brunswick,	acting	through	
the	Brunswick	Town	Council,	establishes	the	following	policy	under	which	the	Town	might	provide	
funds	to	certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations:	
	
Social	Services	Committee	
	

Committee	Composition:		The	committee	shall	consist	of	five	(5)	members.		Three	(3)	shall	be	
Town	Councilors,	appointed	for	annual	terms.		Two	shall	be	(2)	citizen	members	appointed	to	
two‐year	staggered	terms.	
	
Committee	Responsibilities:		The	committee	has	the	following	responsibilities:	
	
 administer	this	policy	and	make	recommendations	regarding	amendments	to	the	policy;	
 develop	and	administer	any	procedures	consistent	with	this	policy	as	necessary	to	meet	

the	goals	of	this	policy;	
 receive	and	review	funding	requests	made	pursuant	to	this	policy;	
 recommend	grant	amounts	to	be	awarded	to	eligible	organizations.	

	
Definitions	
	

Charitable	Organization:		A	non‐government,	non‐profit	organization,	determined	to	be	tax‐
exempt	by	the	Internal	Revenue	Service	under	section	501	(c)(3)	of	the	United	States	Internal	
Revenue	Code,	that	provides	goods	and	services	at	low	cost	or	no	cost	to	Recipients	(as	defined	
herein).	
	
Distributions:	Goods	and	services	which	a	Charitable	Organization	provides	to	Recipients.	
	
Recipient:	A	natural	person	who	receives	goods	and	services	from	a	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Year:	A	Charitable	Organization’s	fiscal	year.	
	

Eligibility	
	
To	apply	for	and	receive	funding	from	the	Town,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	meet	the	definition	
as	defined	herein	and	must	at	all	times	be	qualified	as	a	501(c)(3)	organization	under	the	United	



 

	 	
	 Page	2	of	4	
	
O:\Council\Council	Committees\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT	021616.docx			 Printed	on:		3/17/16	

States	Internal	Revenue	Code,	and	must	provide	the	Town	with	proof	of	such	qualification	with	
each	application	to	the	Town	for	grant	funds.		Loss	of	eligibility	will	render	an	applicant	ineligible	
for	funding	and	from	receiving	grant	award	payments.	
	
Further,	in	order	to	apply	for	and	receive	funding,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	demonstrate	to	
the	satisfaction	of	the	Social	Services	Committee	that	in	each	Year:	
	

 Distributions	made	by	the	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	in	the	form	of	food,	clothing,	
shelter,	medical,	transportation,	or	a	combination	thereof.		

	
 At	least	seventy‐fiveninety	percent	(7590%)	of	the	funds	the	Charitable	Organization	

receives	from	the	Town	of	Brunswick	shall	be	distributed	to	Charitable	Organization’s	
Recipients	shall	be	residents	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick.	

	
 At	least	seventy‐five	percent	(75%)	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	budget	shall	be	

comprised	of	Distributions	to	Recipients.	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	be	controlled	by	or	otherwise	affiliated	with	any	religious	
organization.		However,	having	an	office	in	facilities	owned	or	occupied	by	a	religious	organization	
shall	not,	in	and	of	itself,	be	disqualifying.	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	discriminate	in	any	way	either	for	or	against	any	Recipient	due	
to	the	race,	creed,	color,	gender,	national	origin,	or	sexual	orientation	of	that	Recipient.		
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	make	all	determinations	regarding	an	applicant’s	eligibility	to	
and	the	Committee’s	determination	shall	be	final.	
	
Applications	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	must	submit	a	timely	application	deemed	complete	by	the	Social	Services	
Committee.		A	complete	application	shall	include	the	prescribed	form	of	application	as	well	as	all	
additional	submissions	required	by	this	policy.		The	application	must	be	certified	by	the	Charitable	
Organization’s	chief	executive	to	be	true	and	complete.		Further,	the	applicant	statement	shall	
include	an	agreement	to	fully	indemnify	and	defend	the	Town	against	any	liability	that	might	arise	
out	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	activities.		The	application	shall	be	accompanied	by	the	
Charitable	Organization’s:	
	

 Articles	of	Incorporation	
 By‐Laws	
 List	of	Board	Member	and	Officers	
 Audited	Financial	Statements	(most	recent	3	years)	
 Federal	Income	Tax	Returns	(most	recent	three		3years)	
 An	Annual	Budget	
 Property	Tax	Exemption	Certification	(if	applicable)	
 Certificate	of	Insurance	(general	liability	minimum	of	$1,000,000)	

	
All	applications	for	funding	must	be	received	by	the	Town	by	the	date	prescribed	by	this	policy	and	
deemed	to	be	complete	the	Social	Services	Committee.		Late	or	incomplete	applications	will	not	be	



 

	 	
	 Page	3	of	4	
	
O:\Council\Council	Committees\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT	021616.docx			 Printed	on:		3/17/16	

considered	and	the	applicant	will	be	deemed	ineligible	for	funding.		The	Social	Services	Committee’s	
determination	of	an	application’s	completeness	shall	be	final.	
	
Applicants	should	be	aware	that	documents	submitted	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick	shall	be	deemed	
public	documents	under	Maine’s	Freedom	of	Access	Act	and	shall	be	available	for	public	inspection	
and	copying.		It	shall	not	submit	any	materials	that	could	identify,	or	lead	to	the	identification	of,	
any	individual	that	applied	for	or	received	assistance	from	the	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Awards	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	recommend	the	total	amount	of	grant	funding	to	be	included	in	
the	Town’s	annual	budget	and	make	funding	level	recommendations	for	each	applicant,	including	
any	recommendation	that	an	organization	not	be	funded.		These	recommendations	shall	not	
prevent	individual	Councilors	from	making	his	or	her	own	recommendations	during	budget	
deliberations.		However,	the	Council	will	not	entertain	funding	proposals	from	Charitable	
Organizations	that	did	not	submit	a	complete	and	timely	application	under	this	policy.	
Grant	awards	to	a	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	determined	in	the	deliberation	and	approval	of	
the	Town’s	annual	budget.		The	amount	of	funds,	if	any,	to	be	disbursed	shall	be	at	the	sole	
discretion	of	the	Town	Council.	
	
The	Town	Council	shall	not	be	obligated	to	disburse	all	funds	made	available	in	the	adopted	budget.	
The	Town	Council	may,	at	any	time,	in	the	sole	exercise	of	its	discretion,	remove	in	whole	or	in	part	
funds	that	may	have	been	previously	approved	as	to	any	Charitable	Organization.		Funding	may	be	
withdrawn	due	to	budgetary	constraints,	failure	to	maintain	eligibility,	or	for	any	other	reason	the	
Town	Council	deems	appropriate.	
	
Grant	payments	to	Charitable	Organizations	shall	be	made	in	two	equal	semi‐annual	payments.	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	may	suspend	funding,	including	any	unexpended	commitments,	to	any	
Charitable	Organization	that	loses	its	eligibility	under	this	policy.		Further,	the	Town	may,	at	its	
discretion,	seek	to	recover	funds	granted	to	an	organization	deemed	ineligible.	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee,	in	determining	its	level	of	recommended	support	for	a	Charitable	
Organization,	shall	consider	the	value	of	all	property	tax	exemptions	the	Town	has	granted	to	that	
organization.	
	
Calendar	
	
Activity	 Date
	
Appointment	of	Social	Services	Committee July	or	August
Social	Services		Committee	Consults	Town	Manager	on	Funding	(in	total) November
Social	Services	Committee	Recommended	Funding	Levels	(in	total) December	
Application	Period	Opens	 January	1
Application	Period	Closes	 January	31
Social	Services	Committee	Reviews	Applications February
Social	Services	Committee	Recommendation	to	Town	Council March	1
	

	



 

	 	
	 Page	4	of	4	
	
O:\Council\Council	Committees\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT	021616.docx			 Printed	on:		3/17/16	

Prior	to,	or	at,	the	Town	Council’s	first	meeting	in	December,	the	Social	Services	Committee,	after	
consultation	with	the	Town	Manager,	shall	recommend	to	the	Town	Council	the	aggregate	amount	
of	all	funds	available	for	disbursement	to	all	Charitable	Organizations	in	the	upcoming	fiscal	year	of	
the	Town.		During	the	first	year	following	the	adoption	of	this	policy,	the	total	amount	to	be	
distributed	shall	not	exceed	$20,000.	



ITEM 41
BACK UP MATERIALS 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Appointments Committee 

SUBJECT: Report for April 4th Appointments 

DATE: 03/25/2016 

The Appointments Committee interviewed several people and are making the following 
unanimous nominations:   
 
Village Review Board 

Annee Tara – balance of term to expire on 10/20/2017 
 
Fence Viewer 

Mark Worthing – full term to expire on 05/01/2019 
 
Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission 

Doug Niven – Alternate for a term to expire on 05/01/2019 
Bill Good – Full for a term to expire on 05/01/2019 
Sue Stableford – Full for a term to expire on 05/01/2019 

 
Sewer District 

Thomas Green – full term to expire on 04/01/2019 
Earle Harvey – full term to expire on 04/01/2019 

 
(There was one additional application from Michael Lawler.) 

 



1

Fran Smith

From: smithfm@brunswickme.org
Sent: Wednesday, January 06, 2016 1:46 PM
To: Fran Smith
Subject: New submission from Board Application

Full Name  

  Bill Good  

Street Address  

  5 Outlook Lane  

Home phone #  

  N/A  

Cell/mobile phone  

  631-267-6119  

email address  

  fairwind500@gmail.com  

Commitee/Board you are applying for  

  Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission  

Type of Memberships  

  Full membership  

Do you or any relative currently serve on any Town Board/Committee/Commission

  
 Yes 

What Board/Commission/Committee, the number of years of service, and the relationship to this applicant

  Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission, 2 years, myself

Your occupation (include employer and work phone #)

  Retired  

List any civic organizations to which you belong

  
Friends of Merrymeeting Bay 
Merrymeeting Audubon 
The Association of Bowdoin Friends 
Pejepscot Historical Society  

Note any prior experience knowledge, or abilities that you have which would contribute to the activities of the 
board/committee/commission  

  Have served on the Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission since its first meeting on May 28th, 2014. Have a life-long interest in 
the waterfront that includes motor boating, sailing, paddling and fishing.

Have you previously served on a Town board/commission/committee? If so, please list the board/commission/committee 
and years of service:  

  Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission 2 years.  

1. Do you have any questions about what the Board/Commission/Committee does or on its charge?  

  No.  



2

2. Do you have any practical experience or formal education that would be relevant to the Board/Commission/Committee?

  As mentioned above, I have had experience as a recreational boater. Have also served on the board of a non-profit boat shop of 
which I remain a member.  

3. Why would you like to be on the Board/Commission/Committee?

  The Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission is a relatively new commission and I would like to continue to serve to help make the 
waterfront more accessible to people while protecting it at the same time.

4. Are you aware of the time involved and would you be able to attend most of the meetings?  

  Yes.  

5. Do you have any conflict of interest that might involve either a direct financial gain or other gain?  

  No.  

6. Do you have anything you would like to add?  

  Would welcome the opportunity to continue to serve the Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission and the Town of Brunswick.
 

 















1

Fran Smith

From: smithfm@brunswickme.org
Sent: Friday, December 18, 2015 3:36 PM
To: Fran Smith
Subject: New submission from Board Application

Full Name  

  Michael Lawler  

Street Address  

  22 Kimberley Circle  

Home phone #  

  729-5455  

Cell/mobile phone  

  841-9742  

email address  

  mikelawler@mac.com  

Commitee/Board you are applying for  

  Sewer District Board of Trustees  

Type of Memberships  

  Full membership  

Do you or any relative currently serve on any Town Board/Committee/Commission

  
 No 

Your occupation (include employer and work phone #)

  Retired  

List any civic organizations to which you belong

  
American Red Cross 
Amateur Radio Emergency Service (ARES) 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) 
Association for Computing Machinery (ACM)  

Note any prior experience knowledge, or abilities that you have which would contribute to the activities of the 
board/committee/commission  

  4 years service on Elected Board of Trustees in Scherzo Texas 
3 years service on Brunswick Sewer District Board of Trustees

Have you previously served on a Town board/commission/committee? If so, please list the board/commission/committee 
and years of service:  

  Brunswick Sewer District 2001-2004 
Memorial day Committee 2001-2008  

1. Do you have any questions about what the Board/Commission/Committee does or on its charge?  

  No  

2. Do you have any practical experience or formal education that would be relevant to the Board/Commission/Committee?

  see Resume  



2

3. Why would you like to be on the Board/Commission/Committee?

  I believe my experience with governance of sewer districts makes me uniquely well qualified to serve on the Board of Trustees 
(see resume).  

4. Are you aware of the time involved and would you be able to attend most of the meetings?  

  Yes  

5. Do you have any conflict of interest that might involve either a direct financial gain or other gain?  

  No  

If you wish to upload your resume, you can do so here

  
 20150113-Mike-Lawlers-Biographical-Sketch.pdf 

 

 



Michael Lawler 
Woodward Point 

22 Kimberley Circle 
Brunswick, Maine 04011 

Wired 207-729-5455 
AT&T Wireless 207-841-9742 

US Cellular Wireless 207-538-7712 
mikelawler@mac.com 

January 13, 2015

Biographical Sketch

Michael Lawler was born in Omaha, Nebraska on December 3, 1944.  
Michael’s Mother was a statistician with Mutual of Omaha and his Father was 
an attorney in private practice.

Michael grew up in Omaha and attended parochial schools there until gradu-
ating from Creighton University before entry into the United States Air Force.  
Following a 20 year career in the Air Force, Michael retired from the Air Force 
and returned to life as a civilian.

Michael’s civilian professional experience has been exclusively in the Infor-
mation Technology industry.  Employed initially by the Datapoint Corporation,  
Michael rotated through several engineering positions with both Racal-Milgo 
and Intecom before landing with Apple Computer.  Michael rapidly advanced 
while with Apple and held a senior management position upon his departure 
from the company.  Following his many years at Apple Computer, Michael 
started his own private consulting practice that was located in Stamford, 
Connecticut.  Michael and his wife, Mary Anne, both retired in 1999 and relo-
cated from Stamford, Connecticut to Brunswick where they currently reside 
with their Golden Retrievers - Milly and Murphy.

Michael was elected as a Director of the Cibolo Creek Municipal Authority 
(CCMA) in the early 1980s and served in that capacity until moving out of the 
area two years later.  The CCMA was a municipal wastewater treatment facil-
ity serving 3 incorporated communities located North of San Antonio, Texas.

Michael has has a long history of volunteer service to the Community and 
would like to continue that here in Brunswick.


















	ca a yes
	ca a March 21, 2016 min
	ca b yes
	ca b quit claim 223_20160329120011
	ca c yes
	ca c 006_20160329120052
	ca d yes
	ca d quit 276_20160329120150
	ca e yes
	ca e quit 200_20160329122205
	ca f yes
	ca f 058_20160330080659
	CA g yes
	ca g 346_20160330080733
	ca h yes
	ca h grant speed_20160329120329
	ca i yes
	ca i sest belt_20160330103218
	ca j yes
	CA j MMA grant from Don
	ca k yes
	CA k Request to Town Council for Spring Safety Grant-2016
	ca L yes
	ca lMemo National Service Day 031616
	ca l  b National Service Day 2016
	CA l  c service
	28 Full YES write in
	28 yes
	28 a Memo for Council on Write-in tallying
	28 b March 7 Law on write in candidates
	28 c March 7 JULY 2015 MAINE TOWNSMAN write-in explaination

	36 FINAL S Walker Miller Point Memo 031616
	39 FULL special_20160330093456
	40 FULL Memo Social Service Agency Funding 031716
	41 Full
	41 app com memo for 4-4-16
	2016 Good B - Rivers and Coastal
	2016 Green T Sewer D Tr_20160114091358
	2016 Harvey E Sewer_20160203084416
	2015-16 Lawler M - Sewer District Board
	2015 Lawker 0113-Mike-Lawlers-Biographical-Sketch
	2016 Niven D Rivers_20160126125827
	2016 Stableford S RCWC_20160211132933
	2015NA Tara A VRB MPIC_20150727111110
	2016 Worthing M Fence_20160211132830

	MR REPORT April 4.pdf
	mr a yes
	mr a Brunswick Council Project Tracking 033016
	mr b yes
	mr b 2016-17 Budget Calendar updated 033116
	mr c yes
	MR c 2016032815060special permits




